
 

Revised 

 

TOWN OF BASALT MEETINGS 

Meeting of the Planning and Zoning Commission 

Tuesday, January 19, 2016 
 

Basalt Town Hall                                                101 Midland Avenue   

 
6:15 pm P&Z Gathers – light dinner 
 
6:25 Call to Order  
 
 Minutes  

 November 17, 2015  
                                                                                                                                     

6:30 Public hearing for Perry Special Review Application for Suite 202, 104 
Midland Avenue - for the purpose of considering an Application submitted 
by. Robert and Lucinda Perry for Special Review to reduce the required 
private open space, Community Priorities Scoring System Exemption, 
Community Housing Mitigation Exemption, waiver of Parkland fees on a 
Historically Designated Property, an Off-Street Parking Waiver, and a 
Condominium Amendment to convert Office Unit 202 at 104 Midland Avenue 
into a single residential unit of approximately 1,400 square feet.   

 Recommended Action: Staff and Applicant presentation; Public Hearing; P&Z 
discussion; and if P&Z is comfortable, motion to recommend approval to the 
Town Council per Staff Recommendation 

 
6:50 Adjourn Regular Meeting - Move to The Art Base at 99 Midland Avenue 

(previously Wyly Arts Center) 
 
7:00 Worksession: Zoning Options for Our Town Planning Properties  
 
7:30 Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Items on the agenda are approximate and intended as a guide for the Commission.  Times are subject to 
change, as is the order of the agenda.  For deadlines and information required to schedule an item on the 
agenda, please contact Basalt Town Hall at 927-4701.   



DRAFT 

TOWN OF BASALT 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING 
   NOVEMBER 17, 2015 

 
CALL TO ORDER  
The meeting was called to order at 6:09 p.m.  Commissioners answering roll call were Gino Rossetti, 
Gary Wheeler, Patrick McAllister and Alternate Tracy Bennett. 
 
Staff present was Susan Philp, Town Planner; James Lindt, Assistant Planning Director; and Denise 
Tomaskovic, Recorder. 
 
Philp noted that the Co-Chair, Dylan Johns, was absent this evening and requested a motion to appoint 
an interim Chair.   
 
M/S ROSSETTI AND BENNETT TO APPOINT GARY WHEELER AS INTERIM CHAIR.  THE 
MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4-0. 
 
APPROVAL  
Minutes of November 3, 2015  
 
M/S ROSSETTI AND BENNETT TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF NOVEMBER 3, 2015 AS READ.  
THE MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4-0. 
 
AGENDA ITEMS                                                                                                                                                          
Public Hearing- Amendments to Approval Documents for Willits Town Center PUD – submitted 
by Willits Town Center (WTC) LLC to address several changes to the existing approvals. 
Amendments propose to increase the Maximum Allowable Floor Area in the PUD by 91,000 
square feet; to Increase the Maximum Allowable Residential Floor Area in the PUD by 31,500 
square feet; and make other changes to the development approvals. 
 
Philp introduced the item and referred to posted lists regarding this evening’s procedure, discussion 
items and financial issues that the Town Council will decide.  This is a two-track proposal; the floor area 
issue to be reviewed by the P&Z and a separate financial piece (public improvement fees) for 
consideration by the Town Council.  She added that comments regarding this item have been 
submitted by Co-Chair Dylan Johns and Carol Hawk, president of the Sopris Meadows HOA board, and 
distributed to the Commissioners this evening.  Philp also noted that Staff has handed out additional 
information that includes amendments to two of the conditions for approval; one concerns the traffic 
study and highway access permit, and the second is about the monument sign.   
 
Lindt reviewed the approval condition amendment for the proposed signage plans.  After the previous 
P&Z meeting the Applicant constructed frames indicating the proposed sign sizes which were then 
viewed by Staff and the Commissioners.   
 
Philp briefly explained the proposed PUD amendments per the following list of discussion items: 
1. Density and Floor area to be permitted  
2. Traffic and Traffic Mitigation 
3. Affordable Housing 
4. Day Care 
5. Private parks and open space 
6. Signage Amendments 

2 of 92



Town of Basalt Planning and Zoning Commission 
November 17, 2015 
Page 2 of 5 

 
Philp then introduced Tim Belinski of Independent Ventures, owner’s rep for the project.  Belinski, in 
turn, introduced Jeff Orsulak and the project architect, David Warner, and added that Evan Welsh from 
Mariner Real Estate (WTC property owner) was present, as well as Yancy Nichol, project engineer. 
 
Warner used a Powerpoint presentation to illustrate the PUD amendments.  The same presentation 
had been made to the Commissioners at the previous P&Z meeting and the same points were 
reviewed, with additional clarification at times.  The main point was that so much of the allotted 
commercial square footage was consumed by the hotel on Block 12 and by Valley View Hospital offices 
on the upper floors of Block 6 that there isn’t enough commercial square footage available to fill the 
remaining ground floor spaces and hence, the request for more.  Warner said that the development 
team feels that this doesn’t end up equating to a larger development footprint than has already been 
approved.  He noted the success of wider sidewalks to accommodate outdoor dining on some of the 
streets and he explained how the alley functions will be reconfigured to allow safer and more 
convenient pedestrian movement.  
 
Belinski further explained the proposed signage plan and the most recent changes to that plan, 
referring to several slides from Warner’s Powerpoint presentation.  Belinski said that the sign for the 
Element Hotel will be added to the monument sign at the intersection.  Philp emphasized that the 
community message board is a popular community benefit and Staff considers it important to retain.  
Staff has recommended 180 sq. ft. but the Applicant says they would like 270 sq. ft. in order to offer 
adequate signage options to potential tenants, as well as existing tenants.  Belinski said that in order to 
allow this item to move through the review process the Applicant won’t refute Staff’s suggestion but will 
continue to analyze it and work with Staff. 
 
Nichol explained how he and Staff have been working on refining the FHU traffic study to include 
updated housing unit numbers.  They are waiting for CDOT’s referral comments.  The protected double 
left turn from Willits Lane onto Hwy. 82 is still an option as a permissive protected left to ensure 
continued highway capacity.  Belinski said that the Applicant and Staff will continue to work on this. 
 
Belinski and Welsh asked that the P&Z approve the PUD amendments as presented with the 
understanding that the Applicant and Staff will continue to work on issues up until the time that Town 
Council reviews this application.  Belinski noted that the school district was able to pass the bond issue 
that will help provide 14 affordable housing units for teachers on Block 7, and those units will be 
incorporated into the structure.  He also clarified that the problem with the resident occupied deed 
restriction is that lenders aren’t willing to loan money for the purchase of this type of housing. 
 
Belinski acknowledged that he had met with some of the adjacent HOA members and the Applicant has 
done a lot of work to soften the edge between the mixed use WTC and residential Sopris Meadows. He 
reiterated that no commercial uses will be facing the neighborhood, only residential units. 
 
Commissioner Questions 
Rossetti asked how the affordable housing units would be allocated.  Welsh explained that the 
additional square footage request would require additional AH units.  58 units will be built on Block 7 
and the remaining units scattered throughout WTC.  Rossetti asked if a four-way stop could be installed 
at the intersection of Reed Street and East Valley Road.  Warner said that he walks and drives through 
that area every day without any trouble, but a 4-way stop could be possible in the future.  Welsh added 
that traffic will be more dispersed when Block 7 is built and Lewis Lane is completed.  However, the 
Applicant acknowledged that traffic conditions will continue to be monitored and mitigated as 
necessary. 
 

3 of 92



Town of Basalt Planning and Zoning Commission 
November 17, 2015 
Page 3 of 5 

 
Alternate Bennett asked if restaurant uses have been included in the retail count and Staff responded 
that yes, restaurants are included in the retail count.  Bennet then asked if there is a stipulation on 
where future restaurants can/will be located.  She would like to see future restaurants mixed in amongst 
retail uses instead of being all in a row.  Belinski said that the Whole Foods lease is very particular 
about where restaurants can and cannot be located in relation to the grocery store.  He noted that 
restaurant placement will be more strategic going forward. 
 
Commissioner McAllister clarified that the Applicant will be working with Staff on the conditions of 
approval.  Belinski said that due to time constraints the Applicant wasn’t able to get the edits submitted 
before the packet deadline. 
 
Interim Chair Wheeler asked about the inclusion of a day care facility in WTC.  Philp explained that the 
Town is working with Kids First and the Basalt Childcare Coalition on generation rates and a correlating 
impact fee.  It’s been determined that having a daycare facility in WTC would not be the best land use 
due to outdoor play area requirements and drop-off zones.  The childcare impact fee is probably the 
better way to address this issue.  Wheeler then asked whether the PUD’s extra parking spaces took 
into consideration the parking lots that will be tucked under/behind some of the commercial/mixed use 
structures.  Warner replied that it does and, in response to further questioning, said that once the 
surface parking lots are built it would be difficult to retrofit those areas for retail uses.  Belinski added 
that residential parking really needs to be off-street. 
 
Commissioner McAllister asked for clarification on how sub-grade parking could be accommodated if 
the request for additional commercial square footage is granted.  Both Warner and Belinski complied 
with explanations.  Essentially, underground parking feasibility is driven by density. 
 
Public Hearing 
The Public Hearing was opened at 7:11 p.m. 
 
Carol Hawk introduced herself and reiterated the concerns of the adjacent homeowners in Sopris 
Meadows.  The letter from the HOA has been handed out to the Commissioners.   
 
Patrice Becker said that she disagrees with the request for the additional 91,000 square feet, primarily 
because of the increased traffic that would result.  She also wants to know what the price points would 
be for the different types of AH units.  She questioned the need for another Element Hotel sign other 
than what’s on the building itself.  Becker wondered if a big box business could end up in WTC and 
added that she is not a fan of the existing architecture. 
 
Seeing that there were no further public comments, the public hearing was closed at 7:16 p.m. 
 
Commissioner Comments 
Commissioner Rossetti said he supports this PUD amendment and he doesn’t have a problem with the 
request for additional square footage.  He thought that the letter from the HOA was well-written and 
hoped that the developer could continue to work with the Sopris Meadows residents to resolve some of 
the concerns.  Rossetti asked about the future of Block 8.  Philp explained that the Town would like to 
exchange the existing requirement for a core and shell structure for credit towards purchasing 
affordable housing units on Block 7.  The Applicant would still be allowed to build a one-story building of 
9200 square feet on Block 8.  Rossetti then said he didn’t have any problem with the proposed sign “C” 
and he found it aesthetically proportioned.  He thought that requiring a smaller sign would result in a 
less attractive sign because the proportions would change.  Staff replied that they think a reduction in 
the signage amount is warranted because the existing signs around town make do with much smaller 

4 of 92



Town of Basalt Planning and Zoning Commission 
November 17, 2015 
Page 4 of 5 

 
square footage.  Rossetti asked about the request for an additional Element Hotel sign at the 
intersection.  Belinski explained that the hotel needs to be included on the intersection sign to provide 
direction to traffic coming from down-valley. 
 
Alternate Bennett asked how the sidewalk issue (item #3 of the HOA letter) would be addressed.  Philp 
explained the necessity for, and the layout of, the sidewalk and the berm which was previously decided 
with recommendation from the P&Z when the Element Hotel was approved. 
 
Commissioner McAllister said that the amount of information in the packet is overwhelming and it only 
makes sense to continue working through the conditions of approval while the PUD amendment moves 
on to Town Council consideration.  He commended Staff and the Applicant on their diligence. 
 
Interim Chair Wheeler said that the Town has worked very hard over the years to make sure it and its 
surroundings are aesthetically pleasing.  For this reason he supports Staff’s recommendations for the 
reduced signage amount.  He added that Willits Town Center has been a great revenue generator and 
he hopes it continues. 
 
M/S ROSSETTI AND BENNETT TO RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE AMENDMENTS TO THE 
WILLITS TOWN CENTER PUD AS STATED IN STAFF MEMO DATED NOVEMBER 17, 2015 WITH 
ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL AS PRESENTED AT THE MEETING. 
 
Commissioner McAllister suggested an amendment to the motion to include the information that the 
Applicant and Staff will continue to work on outstanding issues until the PUD amendment is considered 
by Town Council. 
 
AMENDED MOTION AGREED TO BY ROSSETTI AND SECONDED BY BENNETT.  THE MOTION 
CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4-0. 
 
Eagle County Referral – Bair Family Preliminary Subdivision/PUD 
 
Lindt, referring to a posted site plan, reviewed the referral application, noting that the property consists 
of a 10 acre parcel located just outside the Town’s urban growth boundary (UGB).  The Applicant is 
proposing to subdivide the property into five new lots with each lot allowed to have a single family 
residence and ADU.  The property is subject to an old agreement by the Town of Basalt to provide 
water to the property even though it is located outside of the Town boundaries.  This application 
received Sketch Plan Approval from Eagle County in 2008 and those approvals have been extended 
several times since then.  Lindt pointed out the proposed locations of the lots, noting that two of the lots 
are at the top of the slope with access from Cedar Drive.  The other three lots will be accessed via an 
existing driveway off of Sopris Drive.  Each lot has a building envelope that would allow maximum floor 
area of 3,000 sq. ft.  The existing single family home will remain.   
 
Lindt then reviewed Staff’s draft referral comments, noting that on the Town’s future land use map this 
property is shown with an ‘existing residential’ designation.  The Town will honor the commitment to 
provide water to the property but a new water service agreement needs to be negotiated prior to the 
Regional Planning Commission’s review.  Regarding the two upper lots, the Town maintains that it 
doesn’t support the inclusion of the ADUs on those lots due to their visibility from Town and access 
issues, in addition to the fact that the Sketch Plan approval didn’t include ADUs on the upper lots.  Lindt 
said Staff would like to see gross square footage limitations that include garages and basement areas. 
 

5 of 92



Town of Basalt Planning and Zoning Commission 
November 17, 2015 
Page 5 of 5 

 
Even though road improvements were made to Cedar Drive by Eagle County this year, there will still be 
road impacts because the increased traffic to the subdivision would come through the Town.  For this 
reason Staff thinks that some of the road impact fees paid to the County should be returned to the 
Town. 
 
Regarding affordable housing (AH), the letter supports a transfer assessment with a reduction to 15% 
of overall floor area for deed restricted housing.  The letter also recommends requiring that the 
proposed RO unit be changed to a price-capped unit. 
 
In response to questions from some Commissioners, Lindt further explained how the Applicant has 
proposed to meet the AH requirements and reviewed access plans for the units. 
 
Commissioner McAllister asked for more information about the water line and necessary negotiation. 
Lindt explained the recommendations in the Staff letter.  The Applicant (and a few other residences) 
currently obtain water via the Hyrup water line but there are some issues with the line, such as leaking, 
and the Town would prefer that the line be vacated and a new line installed.  This requires the 
negotiation of a new water service agreement. 
 
Commissioner Rossetti said that he supports the draft referral letter.  He asked for further clarification 
regarding the Town’s concerns regarding the two upper lots.  Lindt said that increased traffic through 
the Town to get there is major concern as well as the substandard condition of Cedar Drive.  Staff is 
okay with allowing the two houses on the upper lots, but not the additional ADUs that are being 
requested. 
 
M/S MCALLISTER AND BENNETT TO APPROVE THE DRAFT REFERRAL LETTER AS WRITTEN.  
THE MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4-0. 
 
COMMISSIONER AND STAFF UPDATES 
Philp said there is a lot of interest in redevelopment opportunities in Town.  Lindt added that senior 
housing in the form of assisted living is currently a hot topic.  Also, the application for more Southside 
storage units was submitted. 
 
November 24th is a public hearing for the master plan amendment and extension of Real America. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
M/S ROSSETTI AND BENNETT TO ADJOURN.  THE MOTION CARRIED BY A VOTE OF 4-0. 
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission adjourned at 7:55 p.m. 
 
TOWN OF BASALT 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
 
By:________________________                Attest:__________________________ 
     Gary Wheeler, Interim Chair                                     Denise Tomaskovic, Recorder 
 
 

6 of 92



7 of 92



8 of 92



9 of 92



10 of 92



11 of 92



12 of 92



13 of 92



14 of 92



15 of 92



16 of 92



17 of 92



18 of 92



19 of 92



20 of 92



21 of 92



22 of 92



23 of 92



24 of 92



25 of 92



26 of 92



27 of 92



28 of 92



29 of 92



30 of 92



31 of 92



32 of 92



33 of 92



34 of 92



35 of 92



36 of 92



37 of 92



38 of 92



39 of 92



40 of 92



41 of 92



42 of 92



43 of 92



44 of 92



45 of 92



46 of 92



47 of 92



48 of 92



49 of 92



50 of 92



51 of 92



52 of 92



53 of 92



54 of 92



55 of 92



56 of 92



57 of 92



58 of 92



59 of 92



60 of 92



61 of 92



62 of 92



63 of 92



64 of 92



65 of 92



66 of 92



67 of 92



68 of 92



69 of 92



70 of 92



71 of 92



72 of 92



73 of 92



74 of 92



75 of 92



76 of 92



77 of 92



78 of 92



79 of 92



80 of 92



81 of 92



82 of 92



83 of 92



84 of 92



85 of 92



86 of 92



87 of 92



88 of 92



89 of 92



90 of 92



91 of 92



92 of 92


	00 PZ January 19 2016 Agenda
	01 Draft Nov 19 PZ Minutes
	02 104 Midland Perry Special Review
	02a_104Midland_Unit202_StaffMemo
	02b_104Midland_Unit202Application
	02c_104Midland_Unit202ReferralComments
	02cd_104Midland_Unit202Additional_Corres

	03 Our Town Zoning Worksession
	03a Our Town Zoning Memo attach A-C
	03b attach D CSC draft changes
	03c attach E draft River Master Plan District
	03d attach F-G Arch_Uses




